
THE CITY OF CORNING IS AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY PROVIDER AND EMPLOYER 

CITY OF CORNING 
JOINT MEETING 

of the 
PLANNING COMMISSION  

and  
CITY COUNCIL 

TUESDAY, APRIL 16, 2024 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

794 THIRD STREET 
CORNING, CA 96021 

 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER:  6:30 p.m. 
 

B. ROLL CALL: 
 

City Council: Planning Commission: 
 Robert Snow., Mayor Diana Robertson, Chairperson 

Dave Demo Frank Barron 
Jose “Chuy” Valerio Melodie Poisson 

 Shelly Hargens Cody Lamb 
 Lisa Lomeli Brooke Smith 
 

C. BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR: 
 

D. MINUTES: 
 

1. Waive the reading and approve the Minutes of the March 19, 2024 Planning 
Commission Meeting with any necessary corrections. 

 

E. PUBLIC MEETINGS: 
2. Joint Study Session of the Planning Commission and City Council to discuss 
the 2024-2029 Housing Element Presentation and Staff Direction. 

 

F. PUBLIC HEARINGS AND MEETINS: 
 

3. Conditional Use Permit 2024-322 Johnny Boy’s Taco ABC License. 
 

4. Conditional Use Permit 2024-323 T-Mobile 400 sq. ft. Fenced facility at Clark   
Park.      

 

5. Conditional Use Permit 2024-324 Flower Massage and Spa Business. 
 

6. Conditional Use Permit 2024-325 L & T Towing 10-foot Electrified Fencing. 
 

7. Variance for L & T Towing to vary from the Highway 99W Specific Plan. 
 

G. REGULAR AGENDA: 
 

H. PUBLIC COMMENTS AND BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR: 
 

E. ADJOURNMENT:   
 

 
POSTED:  FRIDAY, APRIL 12, 2024 



 
ITEM D-1 

 
 
 

CITY OF CORNING 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 

 

TUESDAY, MARCH 19, 2024 
 CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

794 THIRD STREET 
CORNING, CA 96021 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER:  6:30 p.m. 
 

B. ROLL CALL:   Commissioners: Barron 
 Poisson 
  Lamb 
 Smith 
 Chairperson: Robertson 
All members were present except Commissioners Robertson and  Poisson. 
 

C. BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR:  None. 
 

D. MINUTES:   
 

1. Waive the reading and approve the Minutes of the February 20, 2024 Planning 
Commission Meeting with any necessary corrections. 

Commissioner Lamb moved to approved the Minutes as written; Commissioner Smith 
seconded the motion.  Ayes:  Barron, Lamb, and Smith.  Absent:  Robertson and Poisson.  
Abstain/Opposed:  None; motion was approved be a 3-0 vote with Robertson & Poisson 
absent. 
 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS AND MEETINGS:   
 

2. Tentative Tract Map 24-1001 Shaan Estates – Hirday Singh, Applicant:  To 
create 14 Single-Family Residential Parcels in an R-1 Zoning District.  
Located on the north side of Blackburn Avenue and approximately 140 feet 
east of Marguerite Avenue.  APN:  075-310-042-000; approximately 2.74 
acres. 

Presented by Planner Chrissy Meeds who stated that the original Tract Map has expired.  Mr. 
Singh hired a new engineering firm to duplicate the map being presented tonight for 14 single-
family residential parcels listed as Tentative Tract Map 24-1001 known as Shaan Estates.  The 
new map requires an addendum to the previously adopted Mitigated Negative Declaration which 
staff has completed (Exhibit C).  City Staff is recommending Commission approval of the 
proposed 4 Findings and the 47 Conditions of Approval. 
 

Commissioner Barron opened the Public Hearing at 6:46pm; with no comments the Public 
Hearing was closed at 6:46pm.  Commissioner Lamb mentioned that Council might want to 
consider amending the General Plan as they relate to Conditions 44 & 46, specifically stating that 
just paving half a road does not work and is not in the best interest of the City. 
 

Commissioner Lamb moved to adopt the 4 Findings as presented and adopt the 47 
recommended Conditions of Approval; Commissioner Smith seconded the motion.  Ayes:  
Barron, Lamb, and Smith.  Absent:  Robertson & Poisson.  Abstain/Opposed:  None; 
motion was approved be a 3-0 vote with Robertson & Poisson absent. 
 

FINDINGS: 
 

1. The Tentative Tract Map complies with the requirements of Chapter 16.15 of Title 16 
(Subdivisions and Planning) of the Corning Municipal Code. 

 

2. The intended use, sizes and dimensions of the proposed parcels is/are consistent with 
the R-1 zoning designation, shown on the official zoning map of the City of Corning and 
the Residential General Plan Land Use designation as shown on the Land Use Diagram 
of the City of Corning.  

 



 
ITEM D-1 

3. There was a CEQA Initial Study to determine the potential environmental effects of the 
project, that was completed in 2007.  A Negative Declaration was filed and recorded with 
the State Clearing House #2007072018, it was determined with 12 mitigation measures 
that this project will not have a significant effect on the environment.  

 

4. Approval of the proposed Tentative Tract Map will not adversely impact Corning’s ability 
to meet regional housing needs. 

 

RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL (47): 
 

1. Subdivision Standards.  Development of Subdivision Map shall be in conformance with the 
approved tentative map and Subdivision Ordinance of the City of Corning, Title 16 of the 
Corning Municipal Code. Additionally, development must comply with all Federal, State and 
Local regulations, especially the City of Corning Fire and Building Departments. 

 

2. AVIGATION EASMENT.  (Mitigation Measure #1) Prior to recording the final tract map the 
applicant shall dedicate an avigation easement to the Airport Operator (City of Corning). The 
easement shall convey the right of flight at any altitude above 150 feet, the right to cause 
noise and vibration, fumes, dust, and fuel particle emissions, the right of entry to remove, 
mark, or light any obstructions above 150 feet in height, and the right to prohibit the creation 
of electrical interference, unusual light sources and other hazards to aircraft flight.  

 

3. FUGITIVE DUST.  (Mitigation Measure #2) Prior to commencing grading activities, the 
applicant shall obtain a Fugitive Dust Control Permit from the Tehama County Air Pollution 
District and conform to the conditions of that permit. 

 

4. DRAINAGE ANALYSIS.  A registered Civil Engineer or Certified Hydrologist shall prepare a 
Drainage Analysis to determine the increased runoff resulting from the project and, if 
necessary, recommend improvements to public storm drainage facilities in accordance with 
City Standards. 

 

5. RAINFALL INTENSITY/DURATION CHART.   Engineer or Hydrologist shall utilize the 
Rainfall and Intensity Design Chart shown as Public Works Standard S-22 for design 
purposes. 

 

6. IMPROVEMENT PLANS.  Complete improvement plans and supporting calculations shall 
be submitted for approval by the City Engineer.   

 

7. DEMOLISH EXISTING STRUCTURES.  Prior to recording the final map, the applicant shall 
obtain the necessary demolition permits from the building department and demolish the 
existing structures. 

 

8. OPEN BURNING.  No open burning shall occur on this property unless a land-clearing 
permit it obtained from the Tehama County Air Pollution Control District. 

 

9. DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES.  Development of the project residences will require 
payment of City Development Impact Fees in effect at the time of issuance of the individual 
building permits in order to lessen development impact on City transportation systems and 
other public facilities and utilities.  These fees shall be paid prior to issuance of the Building 
Permit for each residence. 

 

10. UNDERGROUND UTILITIES.  All new utilities, including electricity, telephone, gas, and 
cable television shall be provided to each lot and undergrounded.  The existing pole-
mounted utility lines within the frontage of Blackburn Avenue shall also be undergrounded.  
The undergrounding shall include installation of underground wires along the frontage of the 
adjacent Blackburn Estates Tract, on E Alex Lane.  Within the existing conduits and shall be 
approved by the appropriate utility companies. 

 

11. WATER SERVICE.  Developer shall install water service and a meter for each lot in 
accordance with Public Works Standards S-20. 

 

12. SEWER SERVICE LATERALS.  Developer shall install sewer service lateral lines for each 
lot in accordance with Public Works Standards S-21. 

 



 
ITEM D-1 

13. ABANDON WELL AND SEPTIC SYSTEMS.  Prior to recording any final map, the applicant 
shall properly abandon any water well or septic systems occurring on the property in 
accordance with the requirements of the Tehama County Environmental Health Department. 

 

14. FIRE HYDRANTS.  Fire Hydrants shall be installed in accordance with City standards and 
the Uniform Fire Code as adopted by the City.  The developer shall provide the City of 
Corning with one hydrant repair kit. 

 

15. STORMWATER FACILITIES.  Stormwater retention and conveyance facilities shall be 
constructed in accordance with Public Works standards. 

 

16. STORMWATER RETENTION.  Project applicant shall provide for on-site retention of the 
net increase in run-off resulting from the development during a 25-year storm for a duration 
of 4 hours.  If onsite retention is proposed the retention facilities shall be sized to contain the 
run-off resulting from a 100-year storm event 

 

17. PARCEL LANDSCAPING.  Front and street-side yards, including that portion of the street 
right-of-way located behind the sidewalk, shall be landscaped prior to issuance of a 
Certificate of Occupancy.  Landscaping may include any combination of grass, groundcover, 
shrubs and/or trees and is subject to Planning Department approval.  Not fewer than two 
trees (minimum sizes of 15-gallon) shall be planted within each front yard.  Each front and 
street side yard shall be provided with a permanent method of irrigation for this landscaping.  
All landscaping and irrigation must comply with the Water Efficient Landscape Regulations 
as detailed in Section 15.08.055 of the Corning Municipal Code. 

 

18. CULTURAL RESOURCES.  (Mitigation Measures #3) Should cultural resources be 
unearthed during excavation all work in the immediate vicinity shall cease and the City of 
Corning shall be notified.  Upon notice, the City or its consultant shall inspect the site to 
determine what steps, if any, are necessary to address and mitigate the discovery. 

 

19. COMPACTION TESTS.  (Mitigation Measure #4) Prior to issuing any building permit for 
filled lots, the developer shall provide:  1) a report confirming that the fill has been 
sufficiently compacted in accordance with the Uniform Building Code or, 2) engineered 
foundation plans with a statement that the foundation design complies with building code 
requirement based on soil conditions on the site. 

 

20. SWPPP & CONSTRUCTION STORMWATER PERMIT.  (Mitigation Measure #5) Prior to 
any site disturbance or earthmoving activities on or adjacent to the site a construction period 
and post construction period Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) shall be 
prepared and presented to the Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board and 
approved by the City of Corning.  The objective of the plan shall be no net loss of soil (above 
an undisturbed natural, stable background state) from the site due to erosion.  All 
requirements of the post construction period SWPPP shall be completed as part of the 
required improvement plans and shall be maintained in the same manner.  

 

21. DEWATERING PERMIT.  (Mitigation Measure #6) Obtain the appropriate Dewatering 
Permit from the Regional Water Quality Control Board or verify that the general waiver is 
applicable to the project. 

 

22. GRADING PLANS.  (Mitigation Measure #7) Complete grading plans shall be submitted 
to the City Engineer for approval. The grading plan shall include measures to limit erosion 
impacts. 

 

23. SOILS INVESTIGATION.  (Mitigation Measure #8).  The applicant shall initiate a soils 
investigation by a registered engineer geologist or civil engineer to determine if expansive 
soils requiring special structural foundation design is necessary. 

 

24. CONSTRUCTION DAYS & HOURS.  (Mitigation Measure #9) Construction work shall 
occur only between the hours of 7:00 AM to 7:00 PM, Monday through Friday, and between 
the hours of 8:00 AM to 6:00 PM on weekends and federally observed holidays. 

 

25. CONSTRUCTION NOISE.  (Mitigation Measure #10) The primary contractor shall be 
responsible for ensuring that all construction equipment is properly tuned and maintained.  



 
ITEM D-1 

When feasible, existing power sources, such as power poles, or clean fuel generators 
should be used, rather than temporary power generators.  Minimize idle time to 10 minutes.  

 

26. LOT GRADING.  Lots must be graded to direct runoff to storm drain facilities within the 
public right-of-way or facilities within approved drainage easements. 

 

27. REDISTRIBUTE TOPSOIL.  Topsoil shall be stockpiled and redistributed over graded 
surfaces.  

 

28. SPRINKLE EXPOSED SOILS.  (Mitigation Measure #11) During construction, 
unprotected soil shall be sprinkled to minimize wind erosion.  

 

29. FINISHED SURFACES.  Upon completion of development, no substantial area shall remain 
where soils are completely uncovered.   

 

30. COVER EXPOSED SOILS.  (Mitigation Measure #12) Areas denuded by construction 
activities and not scheduled for development for an indefinite period shall be seeded or 
covered by impervious materials to minimize water and wind erosion.  

 

31. RESIDENTIAL FACADE STANDARDS.  In accordance with Corning Municipal Code 
Section 16.21.135, the developer shall vary building floor plans, facades, trim, siding 
material, building colors, roof types, etc., to assure that identical homes are not constructed 
on adjacent lots. 

 

32. STREET NAME.  The final street name is subject to approval of City staff and shall appear on 
the final map. 

 

33. STREET DEDICATION.  Offer street right of way for public streets to reach ultimate 60’ 
standard Right of Way width as required. 

 

34. STOP SIGNS.  A Stop Sign shall be placed at the street intersections with Blackburn 
Avenue. 

 

35. LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING DISTRICT.  Prior to recordation of the Final Map, the 
developer shall establish (or annex to an existing) a landscape and lighting district or other 
equivalent fund-collecting organization approved by the City of Corning to fund the operation 
and/or continued maintenance of street lighting, landscape strips in the public right-of-way, 
stormwater collection and detention facilities.  The project engineer shall prepare an 
estimate of the annual maintenance costs for these facilities that shall be made part of the 
District formation procedure. 

 

36. EXTERIOR ELECTRICAL OUTLETS.  To promote the use of electrical landscape 
equipment, at least two electrical outlets shall be provided on the exterior walls of each 
residence. 

 

37. PROJECT LIGHTING.  Project lighting shall not exceed an average illumination level of 0.1 
foot-candles at the edge of the Blackburn Avenue right-of-way and shall be spaced at intervals 
of not more than 300 feet.  All outdoor lighting shall be shielded and directed inward onto the 
project site.  All outdoor lighting on the project site, including lighting from fixtures installed on 
the outside of project buildings, shall be shielded so that, at a minimum, no light is emitted 
above a horizontal line parallel to the ground, to prevent glare from impacting surrounding 
residences.  

 

38. INTERIOR STREET IMPROVEMENTS.  Interior streets shall be improved in accordance with 
City of Corning standards S-18 (40-foot 2 Lane Street, with a 60-foot Right-of-Way.) 

 

39. ACCESS RESTRICTIONS.  No new driveways shall permit direct access onto Blackburn 
Avenue.  The Final Map shall offer “1 foot wide Non-Access” strips along the Blackburn 
Avenue frontage of Lots 1 & 14. 

 

40. GARAGES.  Lot 1 & 14 garages positioned on the north side for lots 1 & 14.  
 

41. WOOD BURNING STOVES.  Wood Burning stoves shall meet the Only U.S. EPA Phase II 
certified wood-burning devices shall be installed in the subdivision.  Total emissions shall 
not exceed 7.5 grams per hour from each dwelling. 

 

42. ROOF MOUNTED HVAC EQUIPMENT PROHIBITION.  No heating, ventilation, or air 
conditioning equipment shall be installed on the roof of any structure. 

 



 
ITEM D-1 

43. POSTAL BOXES.  Provide one or more “Cluster Box Units (CBUs) for postal service at 
locations approved by the Corning Postmaster.  CBU positions shall appear on the 
improvement plans for the subdivision. 

 

44. BLACKBURN AVENUE PARKWAY.  A four foot, six-inch-wide planter strip shall be 
provided between the sidewalk and the southern property lines of Lots 1 and 14. Plant 
species, groundcover, and irrigation methos shall be drought tolerant and shall be subject to 
approval by the City of Corning.  Maintenance costs shall be the responsibility of the lot 
owners within the development through the annual payments to a Landscape and Lighting 
District, Homeowners Association or other such organization approved by the City of 
Corning.  

 

45. BLACKBURN AVENUE RIGHT-OF-WAY.  The final map shall dedicate property to the 
City of Corning necessary to achieve a 30-foot half width (Collector Standard) for Blackburn 
Avenue. 

 

46. BLACKBURN AVENUE ONSITE IMPROVEMENTS.  Construct the northern half width of 
Blackburn Avenue, including one 12-foot travel lane; one 8-foot parking lane; curb, gutter, 
and sidewalk; and complete as asphaltic concrete overlay for one lane width (12 feet) on the 
southern half-width, in accordance with Corning Municipal Code Section 16.21.040.B.6.c. 
and Standard Drawings S-1 & S-2. 

 

47. FENCING.  Solid 6’-0” tall fencing shall be installed around and between parcels prior to 
issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for any residence constructed within the subdivision.  
All fencing shall meet the City Code. 

 

F. REGULAR AGENDA:   
 

3. Verbal update by City Planner Christina Meeds on the recent changes to 
State Law regarding marijuana and the need to amend associated sections 
of the City’s Marijuana Code. 

Presented by City Planner Chrissy Meeds who provided information on Senate Bill 1186, the 
Medicinal Cannabis Patients Right of Access Act which went into effect January 1, 2024.  The Act 
bars a City from adopting or enforcing any regulation that directly or indirectly prohibits retail 
delivery of medicinal cannabis to patients or caregivers in the City.  She stated that Staff is 
currently working on an Ordinance in response to this new law.  (Informational item only, no action 
necessary). 
 

G. PUBLIC COMMENTS AND BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR:  None. 
 

H. ADJOURNMENT:  7:02pm 
 
 

____________________________ 
Lisa M. Linnet, City Clerk 



E-2













































F-3











F-4











































F-5





















F-6











































F-7






	CITY OF CORNING
	TUESDAY, APRIL 16, 2024
	CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS
	E. ADJOURNMENT:


	March 19 2024 Plng. Comm. Mtg. Minutes.pdf
	CORNING, CA 96021


